
Fort Worden Coordinating Committee 
Annual Meeting Agenda 

Monday, Feb. 22, 2021 | 1-3 p.m. 
Meeting by ZOOM per State Proclamation 20-28 

Public Meeting Access 

By Computer: 
https://zoom.us/j/99712013551?pwd=dm9SRllwdy9UL3Q0aVFMYW1iSGpDQT09 

By Telephone: 
1+ 253-215-8782 (Tacoma) 
Meeting ID: 997 1201 3551 
[no participant ID] 
Passcode if needed: 067044 
*9 to request to speak during public comment

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call & Introductions

III. Changes to the Agenda

IV. Consent Agenda
A. Review and approval of the February 28, 2020 Fort Worden Coordinating Committee

meeting minutes
Action: Motion to approve the February 28, 2020 Fort Worden Coordinating Committee
meeting minutes

Business Agenda 
A. WA State Parks Capital Projects Update
B. Review 2020/2021 Annual Maintenance Report (Master Lease, Section 8.5)

V. Partner Communications (“2020: A Year of Resilience, Creativity and Innovation” publication)

VI. PDA Communications (Reorganization update - FAQ)

VII. Public Comment

VIII. Adjourn

Page 1 of 13

https://zoom.us/j/99712013551?pwd=dm9SRllwdy9UL3Q0aVFMYW1iSGpDQT09


Fort Worden Coordinating Committee 
DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

Commons B, Fort Worden 
February 28, 2020 | 11:30 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 

 
I. Call to Order: 11:30 a.m. 

 
II. Present 

 
Committee: Darrel Hopkins, Brian Hageman, Peter Herzog (by phone), Dave Robison, 
Gee Heckscher, Thatcher Bailey, Joan Rutkowski (Admin) 
 
Staff/Public Guests: David Beckman, Larry Sammons, Gerald Merritt, George Randels, 
Claude Manning, Zan Manning, Lisa Werner, Terry LeLievre, Rob Birman 
 

III. Opening Presentation 
Fort Worden Public Development Authority Executive Director Dave Robison provided a 
history of the Coordinating Committee’s function and how maintenance of the Fort 
Worden campus by the PDA and Washington State Parks has evolved since 2014. The 
presentation provided a review of compliance with the master lease terms between 
Parks and the PDA. Robison noted that a major change in maintenance began in 2018 
when the master lease was amended to designate the PDA as the responsible party for 
all campus maintenance needs other than major maintenance that is deemed a capital 
project. A capital project is defined as being over $25,000 and with a life span of more 
than 13 years. Robison said the state wants the PDA and Parks to agree on capital 
improvement requests that are submitted to parks staff, who then submit a “unified 
capital project list” to the Parks Commission for consideration. 

 
IV. Review and Approve 2019 Annual Maintenance Report 

The committee reviewed the PDA and State Parks maintenance reports for 2019. The 
PDA’s labor and direct costs for hospitality and facility maintenance totaled $905,194. 
Labor and direct costs for the PDA’s capital improvements in 2019 totaled $5,513,245. 
Parks Area Manager Brian Hageman also shared a summary of partner maintenance and 
improvement expenses for 2018 and 2019, which totaled close to $73,000. 
 
Action: Motion to approve the 2019 PDA and Parks Annual Maintenance Reports. 
Unanimously Approved 
 

V. Review and Approve 2020 Maintenance Plan 
The plan identifies HVAC, electrical, carpentry, and plumbing projects planned for 2020 
and totaling $394,500. Robison noted that the plan is largely unfunded in the PDA 
budget. Centrum Executive Director Rob Birman said that partners also will be making 
investments in buildings, and he asked if partners will need to pay the prevailing wage. 
At-large committee member Thatcher Bailey said it’s likely that the prevailing wage 

Page 2 of 13



would need to be met regardless of which organization is funding the work. Robison 
said that is the safest route, though there may be exceptions. He suggested that 
partners develop their plans and first bring them to Capital Projects Director David 
Beckman. Beckman added that partners shouldn’t underestimate costs and should 
factor in the prevailing wage in their draft plans. 
 
Action: Motion to approve the PDA Maintenance Plan for 2020. Unanimously approved 

 
VI. 10-Year Unified Capital Plan 

Robison presented the PDA’s 2021-2023 priorities for the projects in State Parks’ 10-
Year Capital Plan. 
 

● The top six projects that the PDA would like Parks to address are replacing 
campus-wide fire alarm systems, historic preservation repairs to Building 298, 
exterior improvements to Officers Row (historic preservation), stabilization and 
restoration of the Carriage House (historic preservation), campus-wide historic 
roof replacements, and Fort-wide ADA/Safety upgrades and repairs. Peter 
Herzog said the internal process for finalizing the prioritized project list also 
involves approving a budget for two-year intervals. He said he hopes to have a 
draft budget ready in May for Parks Commission consideration and approval in 
July. Beckman noted that the project costs presented only reflect the values for 
what could be done in the next biennium. 

 
● The PDA’s top six projects from the larger list are rebuilding and expanding the 

TAPS parking lot, exterior and interior improvements to Building 203, providing 
emergency generation capability throughout the Fort, renovating the historic 
Bandmaster House at Makers Square, renovating Building 336 as an ADA 
accommodation, and replacing outdated commercial kitchen equipment and 
providing A/V and technology upgrades in the Building 210 (Commons). Robison 
said most of these projects are unfunded except for parking at TAPS and some of 
the work to Building 203. 

 
The committee and guests discussed which priorities should be officially put forward to 
State Parks for recommendation to the legislature for funding. Hageman shared that the 
Operations Work Group has requests regarding what should be prioritized. He said 
exterior painting needs could be highly prioritized, especially for Building 310. He said 
the group agrees that the most viable addition to the list is Madrona MindBody’s project 
for an ADA compliant entry ramp and restroom alcove for the building it leases (Building 
310). Robison said that State Parks likes to prioritize projects that address safety, then 
infrastructure, and then historic preservation needs. Lisa Werner noted that Building 
310 is a workhorse, and the written Madrona proposal notes that in addition to 
providing space for Madrona activities, the building hosts shared programs with campus 
partners. Larry Sammons said the proposal identifies a clear need, but it’s not a capital 

Page 3 of 13



project. Beckman added that a campus-wide magnetic lock system would elevate the 
project.  

 
Action: Motion to forward items 1-14 from the State Parks list to Parks for their consideration. 
Unanimously Approved 
 
The group further discussed the order of projects on the PDA list. Werner said members of the 
Operations Work Group think the Building 325 and Building 336 projects should switch spots, 
and the rehabilitation of Building 225 (#12 on the list) should be 4th on the list because the 
dormitory is the largest on campus and supports large groups. She noted that it would have 
been ideal to have a more formalized proposal of priorities come out of the work group for 
alignment work with the PDA list before the meeting. Robison said adjustments would need to 
be taken to the PDA board for approval. He said Beckman could identify what aspects of the 
Building 225 project could be prioritized and how the project could be approached in 
manageable increments over the years. The PDA also could look at what can be done over the 
next several years for ADA restroom improvements, he added. 
 
Action: Motion to put forward the PDA priority list as presented with the recognition that the 
PDA has heard from partners about adjustments that should be made. Unanimously Approved 
 
The group agreed that the list could be reviewed at the Operations Work Group and smaller 
scale projects could be identified. Robison said this meeting has involved looking at both capital 
needs versus functional needs. 
 
Meeting adjourned: 2:18 p.m. 
 
 

Page 4 of 13



State Parks Maintenance report-2020- Coordinating Committee  
Fort Worden Pier & Marine Learning Center and Elevated Boat Launch 
Consultant working towards 90 percent design. Environmental support documents postponed until 90 
percent design completed. 
These two projects are being designed as one project from two different funding sources.  A grant in the 
amount of $315,000 and a capital project in the amount of $689,479 (this also included funding for a 
predesign report that was submitted to and approved by OFM).  $5K will remain to finalize the SEPA 
determination. 
 
Fort Worden Replace Upper Failing Electrical Switch at West Gate 
Project awarded to Amaya Electric. Preconstruction mtg scheduled for February 4th 2021. 
This project was not identified in the 19-21 budget request.  It was identified during the biennium as an 
emergent need, so statewide code compliance funding was requested and approved for this 
project.   $7,801 was spent on design.   We have awarded a contract, including tax for construction of 
that project for $62,037.35.   Construction administration will be approximately $8,000 for a total 
project amount of $77,838.35.   The project will be completed by May 15th 2021. 
 
Fort Worden Replace Failing Sewer Lines phase three 
Project is underway and is 33% complete. 
Last biennium, the first phase of construction was designed/permitted/constructed.   Funds were 
reappropriated to this biennium and phases 2 & 3 were designed and permitted.   Phase 2 was 
constructed.   The final phase 3 is currently under construction.  To date we have spent  $1,777,934.    
 
Fort Worden replace water lines phase two 
Project is underway and is 33% complete. 
Last biennium, phase 1 was designed & permitted.   This biennium, phase 1 was constructed and phase 
2 was designed and permitted.   Phase 2 is currently under construction.   Phase 3 is also currently in 
design and we are about to enter into an agreement to have phase 4 designed to 90% by 6/30/21. 
To date we have spent  $1,303,982 with $124,112  remaining left  to spend on phase 2 construction and 
$129,492 left to spend on consulting fees for phase 3 design and construction admin support of phase 
2.   
 
Fort Worden Replace Upper campground Comfort Station 
Nordvind Company waiting on City of Port Townsend.  Demo permit requires ORCA approval before 
issue, Asbestos survey completed the last week in Jan. waiting for test results.  
To date,  $48k  has been spent on design and permit.   A construction contract was awarded in the 
amount of $434,485 (none of this money has been spent yet)    Anticipate another $50,000 needed for 
change orders and construction administration.    Project expected to be completed by 6/30/21 
 
Fort Worden Historic Areas Exterior Repairs, Rob 
Construction is underway.   30% complete. 
To date, $480k  has been spent on design, construction and construction admin.    Expect to spend 
another $750k between now and April 30. 
 
Fort Worden Historic building Roof replacements, Rob 
complete. 
This project totaled $1,051,712 

Page 5 of 13



PDA Maintenance Plan 2020 CRITICAL NEEDS 2018

Program Type Sub-Type  Location Description  RoM Proposed 

Schedule

maintenance building floor 5 Replace carpet  $           18,000 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 24 24 Chapel replace burner system add setback 

controller

 $             2,500 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 25 25 theater replace burner system add setback 

controller 

 $             2,500 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 210 HVAC-restore AHU5 and recomission the system  $             7,500 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 210 Repair Replace Chiller & AC units  $           75,000 2020 Partial repair 

completed
improvement engineering hvac 210 Dish room exhaust air  $             6,500 2020 

improvement engineering elec 210 Redistribute elec loading in kitchen to 

accommodate equipment changes

 $             3,500 2020  On hold due to 

need for exhaust 

system redesgn 

maintenance engineering hvac 210 210 rebuild boiler or replace with higher efficiency 

model. 

 $             2,500 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 210 210 replace all motor /blower sheaves  $           10,000 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 210 210 Rebuild chiller  $           50,000 2020 

maintenance building carp 225 Replace center downspouts #225  $                500 2020 

maintenance building carp 270 Repair section of gutter, west side  $                500 2020 

maintenance building paint 272 repair decks, siding, repaint building  $           15,000 2020 Partial 

completion

maintenance building paint 300 Sand &  Paint Deck  $             5,000 2020 Done

improvement engineering hvac 300 Install airflow in basement wine room 2020 

maintenance building carp 304 Bakery loading dock repairs  $           12,000 2020 

maintenance building carp 333 replace deckboards and repair structural elemnets  $           25,000 2020 

maintenance engineering hvac 334

 replace coal/oil furnaces (2) with ducted A/C mini 

splits 

 $           40,000 2020 Proposal 

received, will 

need to be re-

done due to time 

lapse

maintenance engineering hvac 335 replace coal/oil furnaces (2) with ducted A/C mini 

splits

 $           40,000 2020  SAA 

maintenance building paint 336 Exterior repaint  $           15,000 2020 

improvement engineering elec Fort wide install electic meters in various buildings  $           30,000 2020  Parts are 

purchased 

improvement engineering plumb Fort wide install water meters in various buildings  $           30,000 2020 Never defined

Page 1Page 6 of 13



PDA Maintenance Plan 2020 CRITICAL NEEDS 2018

Program Type Sub-Type  Location Description  RoM Proposed 

Schedule

maintenance building elec nco row Replace all outside porch lights NCO row  $             3,500 2020  Rear porches 

complete 

 $        394,500 

Page 2Page 7 of 13









Fort Worden Lifelong Learning Center Partners

 ��� ����ƒ���� ��������� ����������
����� ����������� ���� ��������������� ���
������������� �������� �
��� ���� ��������
����������� ��������� ������ �������� ��
��
����� ����	� �
� ���������� ��������� �����
���� ����� �
� �� ������	� �����	� �
� ������
���������
������·� ��������� �������������
���
����� ����� 
��� ������� ����������
���������� �� 
������� ���������� ����������
���������� ��������� ���� ��������� ������
������
������������������������������
����������������������������

�	� �������������������������������
���������	�⁄�������	������ –�����
���������£������������
��������
�����������������������
���������
��
����������������	�������������
����������������������������������
��������������������������������
���������������������������������
���
����������������������������������������
���
����������������	�����
�����

�	� �����������������������	�
���������������������	��������
��������������
������������������
fl���fl�����������������	���������

�	� �������������������� ¢��������������
�����	������	��
����������
�������
��������������
���������

�	 ������›��������������������������

�
�	� ������������'������������������


�����
�����	��
���������������������
�����������������������

������
�����������������������������
���������������������������������������
���������������

���� ��� ���� ��������� 
���������� �������
�������� ����� ���� �������� �������
������������
�����������«�����������
�
� �� ������ �
��� �� ������ �
� ����������
���� ��
����� ������� �
� ��������� ����
���
����� ���������� ���� ¶����� ›��������
��������� ��� ����¥��	� 
��� ������� 
����
����������������������
������������������
�����������������������������������������
����������
��	���������������	��� ›�����
�������
����������������������������
�	 �������������������

���	�

�
�	 ����������������›�������������
�	 ����������	����������������
�	� �����������������������������
���

�����“����������
��������� ›��������
�����������������
���� ���� ��������� ������	� ������� ����

������ �
� ����� �������� ���� ������ �����
��� �������� ��
��	� ��� ���� 
����� ������

���	� ��������  �� ������ ����� ��������
fl�����›���������������¤¤�¤¤����������
���������������������
����������������
�����������

RAINSHADOW RECORDINGPORT TOWNSEND  
SCHOOL OF WOODWORKING

����� ��������›�������
�������������
�� ›�����
�����������������
����������
������������
���������������������ƒ����
�����������������	��
��������������������
�����������������	�������
�������������

Students bucking a �r log with a double-handled 
crosscut saw.

centrum
creativity in community

Last year our teams met regularly, usually online but 
occasionally on glorious days outside enjoying Fort 
Worden�s breathtaking scenery, to reimagine how 
we can better support lifelong learning through our 
organizations. Our conversations resulted in new 
partnerships and improvements to our capabilities. 
They made us more�resilient, creative  and innova-
tive. Even successful.
We also worked as part of the Fort Worden Collabor-
ative which includes the Public Development 
Authority (PDA), the City of Port Townsend, and the 
Fort Worden Advisory Committee. We extend our ap-
preciation to these organizations and to Washington 
State Parks. The Lifelong Learning Center partners 
remain committed to helping the PDA and State 
Parks address the challenges of managing this 
magni�cent 434-acre park that is so important to  
the local community, as well as visitors from around 
the world. 

In 2021, as we continue to grapple with the e�ects 
of the pandemic and how the economy, travel, and 
personal connections have changed, supporting 
Fort Worden partners and encouraging more people 
to get involved in Fort Worden�s future is paramount 
to ensuring the economic vitality of this place. 
Your participation is encouraged. Your voice for 
the future of Fort Worden is made possible through 
the Fort Worden Advisory Committee, established 
by the Washington State Parks and Recreation 
Commission�fwacinfo@gmail.com.

Corvidae Press and the Coast Artillery Museum are just two of 100 historic buildings at Fort Worden.



1. Is the FWPDA Reorganizing?

Yes, and here’s why: The Fort Worden Public Development Authority (FWPDA) is reorganizing to create
operational structures that are better suited for addressing its two primary challenges: recovering from
the financial losses caused by the pandemic and addressing the ongoing major maintenance needs of
the 95-acre campus and its 73 historic buildings.

Under the plan the FWPDA retains its identity as a public entity governed by a board of directors and
chartered by the City of Port Townsend. It is downsizing to a small administrative support group that
focuses on holding the public trust and campus lease with State Parks, managing the leases with campus
partner organizations, and passing through state and federal assistance for the Fort’s capital needs.
Managing the campus assets will remain a priority for the FWPDA in 2021 while it works with
stakeholders to develop a new approach for this need. Hospitality services currently operated by the
FWPDA will instead be undertaken by a newly formed local nonprofit organization. 2021 is the
nonprofit’s startup year, and it will operate under the terms of a concession agreement under
development with the FWPDA.

2. How exactly will changes to hospitality services and asset management address the financial
challenges that face the Fort Worden campus?

As a nonprofit instead of a public entity, the hospitality business will be able to take advantage of tools
traditionally used to successfully operate a hospitality business. It also would qualify for emergency
assistance that the FWPDA was unable to receive during the pandemic, which will make the Fort more
resilient in future emergencies. The reorganization plan also reduces the outsized campus maintenance
burden that had been placed on hospitality operations.

The FWPDA’s reorganization work in 2021 involves working with stakeholders to find a fair way to fund
the major maintenance and capital investment needs of the campus buildings. This has historically been
a challenge for both State Parks and the FWPDA. When the FWPDA took over campus maintenance from
State Parks in 2018 it inherited approximately $100 million in deferred maintenance. State Parks will be
an active partner in the development of the Asset Management strategy.

3. Will the Lifelong Learning Center mission still exist for the FWPDA?

Absolutely. The FWPA remains governed by a charter with the City that includes the call for “facilitating
the implementation of a Lifelong Learning Center.” The reorganization plan works to strengthen the
resilience of campus operations in order to better support partner organizations. We remain a part of
the Fort Worden Collaborative as part of the effort to sustain a vibrant Lifelong Learning Center at Fort
Worden. Additionally, the FWPDA’s concession contract will require Hospitality to maintain its
commitment to providing services in support of the partners and the campus Lifelong Learning Center
mission.

  The FWPDA Reorganization          

FAQ 

Page 12 of 13



4. Does the new Hospitality Nonprofit have a mission statement?

Yes! Here is the Mission Statement as filed with the Secretary of State: Fort Worden Hospitality
welcomes visitors to a treasured state asset – Fort Worden State Park and Lifelong Learning Center. We
connect people to the park’s resources: the lifelong learning center campus; the cultural, educational,
artistic, environmental, and recreational programs offered by the park’s partner organizations; and the
trails, beaches, and historic batteries. We also provide hospitality packages, meeting and events spaces,
food services, and lifelong learning programming.

The incoming staff members have also established a set of Company Values:
• Community: Inclusive of On-Site Partners, Guests, Visitors, Employees and Residents
• Passion: For employee well-being, positive guest experience and working to the best of our

abilities
• Integrity: Leading with ethics and honesty through a proactive leadership approach and fostering

an adaptable, positive work environment
• Environmental Stewardship: Preserve the history of Fort Worden State Park while building the

future for a sustainable ecosystem
• Culture of Learning: Fostering an environment of mentorship, training, collaboration and

ownership of work with goals of employee growth and success

5. Does the reorganization affect the campus partner organizations?

Yes, it is our belief that the new organization of the FWPDA will be more responsive and better capable
to address the needs of the partners. The reorganization also is being established in a manner that will
be adaptable to future changes to the partners’ needs. Concerns have been raised that we may make
changes that cannot be undone or will limit future opportunities. Those concerns have been heard and
the final documents will be crafted in a way that can allow future changes if that need presents itself.

6. Is the FWPDA making progress with its debt?

Yes. A plan has been developed that allocates the debt to be addressed by elements of the
reorganization. Makers Square debt is incorporated into the project and secured by the lease terms.
Glamping is incorporated in the business plan of the Hospitality nonprofit. The energy debt is allocated
to the Asset Management program. The remaining debt liability for diverted capital funds will remain
with the FWPDA and will be repaid using the leases and contracts as collateral to finance a term note to
repay the diverted funds.

7. Can I get involved in the FWPDA reorganization effort as a community member?

Yes! We have been talking about this plan extensively in our public board meetings since the process
began in October 2020, and we continue to do so in 2021. Anyone can learn and share their thoughts
through our public board meetings and also reach out to us at any time. Meeting notices are published
on our website and distributed to our media contacts before each meeting, in accordance with the Open
Public Meetings Act. Each meeting involves two opportunities for public comment. The meetings are
recorded and minutes are taken, both of which are posted to the website alongside meeting materials
for public viewing. As we dive into developing a new asset management strategy, we look forward to
public input on how to address this critical challenge. If you would like to reach out to our board or staff
leaders or share a comment for a board meeting, please contact Joan Rutkowski at
jrutkowski@fortworden.org. Public meeting information can be found here:
https://fortworden.org/category/pda-documents/

 The FWPDA Reorganization: FAQ 
Page 13 of 13

 

mailto:jrutkowski@fortworden.org
https://fortworden.org/category/pda-documents/

	1+ 253-215-8782 (Tacoma) Meeting ID: 997 1201 3551
	[no participant ID]
	Passcode if needed: 067044
	*9 to request to speak during public comment



